
The Board’s meeting site is accessible to all persons. Any person requiring accommodation or assistance 
should contact the Secretary to the Board of School Trustees with the School Corporation’s administrative 
office, located at 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana 46514, at 574-262-5506. 
 

MEETING 
 

OF THE 
 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING DATE CHANGE 
 
 
 

 Date:   Monday, December 19, 2022 
Tuesday, December 20, 2022 
 

 
 Time:   8:00 a.m. 
 
 Location:  J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road 

Elkhart, Indiana 46514 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________ 
       Superintendent of Schools 

 
Posted and electronically  

delivered to School Attorney and  

News Media on Tuesday,  

December 6, 2022 and electronically 

delivered to Board Members 

on Tuesday, December 6, 2022. 



- over -

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

December 19, 2022 

CALENDAR 

Dec 19 8:00 a.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 10 6:00 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 10 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 24 6:00 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 24 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL

D. CONSENT ITEMS:

Minutes – December 13, 2022 – Public Work Session 

Minutes – December 13, 2022 – Regular Board Meeting 
Claims 
Fundraisers 

Extra-Curricular Purchases 
Gift Acceptance 
Conference Leaves 

Grants 
Personnel Report 

E. DEMOGRAPHIC AND FEASIBILITY STUDY

F. OLD BUSINESS

G. NEW BUSINESS

Bus Purchase – The Business Offices requests authorization to purchase buses through
the State Bid List purchasing program.

Recommendation for Award – The Business Office recommends awarding the bid for Fuel
for 2023. 



BOARD AGENDA December 19, 2022 

2 

New Course Offering – The administration presents the following proposed new course 
offering for Board review:  Advanced Placement Precalculus. 

Financial Report – November 2022 

Insurance Update 

H. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS

From Audience

From Superintendent and Staff

From Board

I. ADJOURNMENT



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

December 13, 2022 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

6:02 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Dacey S. Davis Babette S. Boling 

Present: Troy E. Scott Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 

 Douglas K. Weaver Kellie L. Mullins 

  Anne M. VonDerVellen 
   

ECS Staff   

Present: William Patterson Tara White 

 Brandon Eakins Brad Sheppard 

 Mindy Higginson  

   
 

Roll Call 

The Board was presented an update on the Adult Education Program, NWEA 
mid-year check list results, and work conducted on the eLearning day.  

Topics 
Discussed 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:04 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Dacey S. Davis, President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Troy E. Scott, Vice President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 

 
 
                  
_______________________________ 
Babette S. Boling, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kellie L. Mullins, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Anne M. VonDerVellen, Member 
 

  
 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

December 13, 2022 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart 
– at  7:12 p.m. 

Place/Time 

 

Board Members Dacey S. Davis Babette Boling 
Present: Troy E. Scott Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. 
 Douglas K. Weaver Kellie L. Mullins 

  Anne M. VonDerVellen 
   
 

Roll Call 

Board president Dacey Davis called the regular meeting of the Board 
of School Trustees to order. 
 

Call to 
Order 

 

Board member Kellie Mullins recited the Elkhart Promise. 
 

The Elkhart 
Promise 

Ms. Davis discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

 

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Counsel (SSAC) member, Derek 
Stanford, a senior at Elkhart High School – Human Services School of 

Study, presented the Moment of Pride.  Mr. Stanford is a member of 
the SSAC, Treasurer for the Senior Class Student Government, 
member of the Chamber Choir and music department, and member 

of the National Honor Society (NHS).  Each year, NHS plans a project 
to provide a fun experience for students and families while also 

serving as the main fundraiser for the group. This year’s project is a 
Winter Carnival held at the Freshman Division in February and will be 
geared towards families with elementary aged students. This event 

will include games, food, a silent auction supported by Elkhart’s small 
businesses, and so much more.  SSAC members will be working 

together to meet their goal of bringing in at least 200 patrons to 
brighten the lives of Elkhart families as well as raising funds to enable 
other service based projects for Elkhart families in the coming years. 

 
Mr. Stanford shared Elkhart High School is excited to be one of the 

first high schools to bring the production of “Mean Girls” the musical 
to the stage.  Several theater students got to participate in a video 

call with Tina Faye, one of the key people involved with the stage 
production as well as an actress in the 2004 film.  
 

The music department is also looking forward to several performances 
this holiday season, showcasing the talent of EHS students including 

Moment of 
Pride 

 



2 
 

piano students’ Capstone Performances; the Freshman Instrumental 
Concert; the Winter Concert; and EHS Choirs Concert.   

 
Charmaine Torma, executive director of Elkhart Education 

Foundation, presented a gold apple to the brave first responders who 
saved our beloved dear friend, Tony England.  Tony England, assistant 
superintendent of exceptional learners, thanked all the first 

responders for taking the time to help a stranger in need during the 
height of COVID.  Brendan Wilczynski, one of the three first 

responders, spoke briefly stating he was honored by the recognition 
and lucky to have been there at the right time, having the skills 
necessary to help.  

 
By unanimous action, the Board approved the following consent 

items: 
 

Consent Items 

Minutes – November 22, 2022 – Public Work Session 

Minutes – November 22, 2022 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

Minutes 

Payment of claims totaling $8,399,447.54 as shown on the 
December 13, 2022, claims listing.  (Codified File 2223-76) 

 

Payment of 
Claims 

Proposed school fundraisers in accordance with Board policy.  
(Codified File 2223-77) 

 

Fundraisers 

The following donations were made to Elkhart Community 

Schools (ECS):  4,000 pounds of aluminum and an industrial 
pallet jack with an owner estimated value of $11,800.00, from 
RC Industries, care of Brad Champion, for the welding class at 

Elkhart Area Career Center (EACC). 
 

Gift Acceptance 

Conference leave requests in accordance with Board policy for 
staff members as recommended by the administration on the 
December 13, 2022 listings.  (Codified File 2223-78) 

 

Conference 
Leaves 

Confirmed the following overnight trip request:  Elkhart High 

School (EHS) to travel to Orlando, Florida on February 9 – 13, 
2023 for the National High School Cheer Competition. 

 

Overnight Trip 

Requests 

 
 

 
One (1) agreement regarding services. (Codified File 2223-79) 
 

 
Employment of the following one (1) certified staff: 

Melissa Flory – special education at Freshman Division, 
12/6/22 

 

Personnel 
Report 

 
Certified 
Agreements 

 
Certified 

Employment 
 
 



3 
 

Retirement of the following one (1) certified staff on dates 
indicated:   

Timothy Miller – business education at North Side, 
12/22/22 

 
Resignation of the following one (1) certified staff on dates 
indicated:   

Jennifer Allen –  special education at Pinewood, 
12/16/22 

 
Maternity leave for the following three (3) certified staff on 
dates indicated: 

Maegan Banicki – special education at Elkhart High, 
beginning 12/6/22 and ending 12/9/22 

Michelle Huff – intervention at St. Vincent, beginning 
1/9/23 and ending 2/16/23 

Jennifer Miller – grade 2 at Cleveland, beginning 1/9/23 

and ending 5/25/23 
 

Medical leave for the following two (2) certified staff on dates 
indicated:   

DeVetta Farrow – assistant principal at Pierre Moran, 
beginning 12/19/22 and ending 2/22/23 

Karla Flores, grade 4 at Monger, beginning 12/2/22 (pm) 

and ending 2/16/23 
 

Employment of the following twenty-two (22) classified 
employees on dates indicated: 

Bryan Arndt – food service at Woodland, 12/5/22 

Makyia Banks – bus helper at Transportation, 12/12/22 
Sierra Benner – food service at North Side, 11/30/22 

Racheal Brown – food service at Commissary, 12/8/22 
Bethanne Campbell – paraprofessional at Eastwood, 

12/6/22 

Sarah Elliott – food service at Pinewood, 11/28/22 
Katie Graf – social worker at Woodland, 11/25/22 

Lisa Gray – food service at Pierre Moran, 11/30/22 
Connor Green – food service at Cleveland, 12/6/22 
Dorothy Green – bus helper at Transportation, 12/7/22 

Tunisia Hunt – bus driver at Transportation, 12/1/22 
Christina Karaszewski – food service at Pinewood, 

11/30/22 
Arlinne Malave Martinez – food service at Elkhart High, 

12/2/22 

Jennifer Martin – food service at Bristol, 12/12/22 
Toni Masterman – secretary at ESC, 12/5/22 

Kristen Milton-Watt – education and engagement 
coordinator at Career Center, 12/12/22 

Certified 
Retirement 

 
 

 
Certified 
Resignation 

 
 

 
Certified Maternity 
Leave 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Certified Medical 
Leave Change 

 
 
 

 
 

Classified 
Employment 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



4 
 

Kenyaetta Mitchell – food service at Elkhart High, 
12/13/22 

Collin Moore – food service at Beardsley, 12/7/22 
Heidi Sigman – food service at North Side, 12/12/22 

Carolyn Ummel – translator/parent liaison at Daly, 
11/29/22 

Vivian Washington – food service at Elkhart High, 

12/5/22 
Sandra Weller – food service at Commissary, 11/30/22 

 
Reassignment of the following one (1) classified employee to a 
certified position: 

Melissa Flory – paraprofessional at Freshman Division 
 

Unpaid leave for the following two (2) classified employees on 
dates indicated: 

Christina Green – bus driver at Transportation, 

beginning 11/8/22 and ending 2/6/23 
Kelly Vollstedt – food service at Beardsley, beginning 

11/14/22 and ending 11/28/22 
 

Extension to unpaid leave for the following one (1) classified 
employee on dates indicated: 

Sally Coddens – bus driver at Transportation, beginning 

11/22/22 and ending 12/2/22 
 

Retirement of the following two (2) classified employees, 
effective on the dates indicated:   

Susan Clifton – social worker at Cleveland, 1/31/23 with 

23 Years of Service 
Sherree’ Wilkey – TAPP technical assistant at Career 

Center, 12/2/22 with 15 Years of Service 
 

Resignation of the following six (6) classified employees on 

dates indicated:   
Alicia Mendez – secretary at Bristol, 12/9/22 

Lauren Robertson – paraprofessional at West Side, 
12/22/22 

Kathy Smith – food service at Elkhart High, 11/28/22 

Brittany Stewart – secretary at Daly, 12/2/22 
Nathaniel Vrielynck – bus driver at Transportation, 

11/30/22 
Barbara White – food service at Commissary, 12/5/22 
 

Revision to the resignation of the following one (1) classified 
employee reported on the November 8, 2022 Board Report. 

Elizabeth Delks – secretary at Elkhart High, 1/20/23 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Classified 
Reassignment 

 
 

Classified 
Unpaid Leaves 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Classified 
Retirements 
 

 
 

 
 
Classified 

Resignations 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Classified 
Revision to 

Resignation 



5 
 

Dr. Thalheimer showed Board members the Indiana Department of 
Education (IDOE) Graduates Preparing to Succeed (GPS) dashboard 

which was released to the public today.  This dashboard is a new 
performance accountability piece for all of Indiana schools, pre-k 

through grade 12.  The dashboard focuses on five indicators identified 
by the State of a student’s preparation for success after high school 
including academic mastery; career and postsecondary readiness 

(credentials and experience); communication and collaboration; work 
ethic; and civic, financial, and digital literacy.  There are four sections 

broken down as follows:  pre-k – grade 2; grades 3 – 8; grades 9 – 
12; and graduation and beyond.  For each of these sections there is 
data to show where Indiana is today and where they are going.  This 

same information can be displayed for an individual school district as 
well as an individual school.  Dr. Thalheimer encouraged Board 

members and the community to take a look at 
www.indianagps.doe.in.gov/.   
 

Instructional 
Report 

 

Dr. Thalheimer provided an update on the Demographics and 
Feasibility Study which will be a standing agenda item going forward.  

The Key Committee met for the first time on December 1, 2022.  
SchoolIQ explained the process as we began with a look at ECS’s 

buildings over the summer.  Next, we are looking at the community’s 
perception of ECS through the release of several surveys.  These 
surveys are available and are being advertised on Elkhart Community 

School’s website at www.elkhart.k12.in.us, Facebook, flyers, all-calls, 
etc.  In response to Board inquiry, Dr. Thalheimer would confirm with 

the communications department to make sure the link is put on 
individual schools’ websites/Facebook, PTO websites/Facebook, etc.  
The administration and Board members encouraged the whole 

community to engage in this process.  In response to public inquiry, 
the Board and administration assured them that the Key Committee 

mirrored the diversity of our school district.   
 

Demographic and 
Feasibility Study 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an exception to facility 

usage under Policy 7510 for the family of Garvin Roberson to use 
North Side Gymnasium for a memorial service on December 10, 2022. 

 

Exception to 

Board Policy 
7510 

The Board was presented updates to Administrative Regulation CC – 
Organizational Chart for review.   

 

Administrative 
Regulation CC 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the reappointment of 

Dorisanne Nielsen (past Board member) to the Elkhart 
Redevelopment Commission for 2023. 
 

Redevelopment 

Commission 
Appointment 
 

Dr. Brad Sheppard, assistant superintendent of instruction, presented 
a proposed new course offering for 2023-2024 school year:  

Aerospace Engineering. (Codified File 2223-80) 
 

New Course 
Offering 

https://indianagps.doe.in.gov/
http://www.elkhart.k12.in.us/


6 
 

By unanimous action, the Board authorized the bulk sale of iPads 
having reached the end of their lifecycle. 

 

Sale of iPads 
 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a Resolution of Transfer 

Appropriations. (Codified File 2223-81) 
 

Transfer of 

Appropriations 

By unanimous action, the Board approved a one-time premium 

holiday for all staff currently participating on the ECS benefits plan 
due to an improved Insurance Fund cash balance. 

 

Insurance 

Premium 
Holiday 

Two (2) audience members spoke about issues at Transportation. From the 
Audience 

One (1) audience member spoke about paraprofessional 
compensation. 

 

 

Two (2) audience members provided an update about the Community 
Culture and Climate Awareness Forum hosted by ECS Parent Coalition 

on December 6, 2022. 
 

 

Dr. Thalheimer thanked all teachers and administrators for the work 
they did during the December 8th eLearning day. 

From the 
Superintendent 

 
Dr. Thalheimer thanked all staff for the work they do, both in and out 
of school, particularly at this time of year. 

 

 

Board member Kellie Mullins thanked the bus drivers and 

paraprofessionals for coming to speak at the Board meeting. 
 

From the Board 

 

Board member Doug Weaver informed the Board that Mayor Rod 

Roberson thanked Elkhart Community Schools for the use of North 
Side for his brother, Garvin Roberson’s memorial service. 

 

 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:15 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

  



7 
 

APPROVED: 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 

  Dacey S. Davis, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Troy E. Scott, Vice President 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

                                             
____________________________________ 

  Babette S. Boling, Member 

 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Kellie L. Mullins, Member 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Anne M. VonDerVellen, Member 

 

Signatures 

 

 



School Fundraising Activity Description/Purpose
Date(s) of 

Activity
Date 
Submitted Sponsor(s)

Mary Feeser - 
Student Council

Student Council will host a flower sale for 
Valentine's Day. Proceed will go towards 
Student Council activities, classroom prizes 
and to help support wish lists for students, 
and courtyard improvements. 

2/1/2023 - 
2/6/2023

12/13/2022 Kerry Gianesi

Mary Feeser - 
Student Council

Student Council will host a fuzzy pencil sale. 
Proceed will go towards Student Council 
activities, classroom prizes and to help 
support wish lists for students, and courtyard 
improvements. 

4/18/2023 - 
4/20/2023

12/13/2022 Kerry Gianesi

Mary Feeser - 
Student Council

Student Council will host a chapstick sale. 
Proceed will go towards Student Council 
activities, classroom prizes and to help 
support wish lists for students, and courtyard 
improvements. 

1/24/2023 - 
1/26/2023

12/13/2022 Kerry Gianesi

Please note the following fundraisers are 
presented for confirmation only.



ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
Elkhart, Indiana

December 14, 2022

TO: Dr. Steven Thalheimer
Board of School Trustees

FROM: Kevin Scott

SUBJECT: Extra-Curricular Purchase

The Business Office recommends Board approval of purchase of the following
items from extra-curricular funds:

SCHOOL/ACCOUNT ITEM AMOUNT

West Side/Athletic 30 Helmets $5,670.00
West Side/ ECA 3 Trombones & 6 Trumpets $9,149.55



WEST SIDE MIDDLE SCHOOL 
401 SOUTH NAPPANEE STREET* ELKHART, IN 46514 

PHONE: 574-295-4815 

tO kkk kok ok kkk ok kok kok eo 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
J.C. RICE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES CENTER 

2720 CALIFORNIA ROAD * ELKHART. IN 46514 

PHONE: 574-262-5500 

To: Dr. Thalheimer 

From: Brent Curry / Kerry Leader kK 

Date: December 13, 2022 

Re: Approval for payment of New Football Helmet Bill 

  

  

West Side Middle School is requesting approval to pay for the new football helmet bill 

from the athletic extra-curricular account. The cost of the bill is $5,670.00 which would 

get WestSide 35 new helmets. The helmets will be for the 7th and 8th grade football 

teams. 

The equipment is being purchased from 

Sportsarama 

P.O. Box 596 

114 W. Chicago RD 

Sturgis, MI 49091



SPORTSARAMA 
P.O. BOX 596 

114 W. CHICAGO RD DATE: December 13, 2022 

STURGIS, MI 49091 INVOICE # 58247 

269-651-5382 

  

  

  
  

  

  

        
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Bill To: Ship To: 

West Side Middle School 

Ath. Dept 

Brent Curry 

P.O. # Sales Rep. Name Ship Date Ship Via Terms Due Date 

Chad Stewart Net 30 

Product ID Description Quantity Unit Price Line Total 

Schutt Youth Helmets 30 189.00 5,670.00 

Free Helmets 5 

SUBTOTAL 5,670.00 

Tax 

DISCOUNT 

FREIGHT 

TOTAL 5,670.00 

PAID - 

TOTAL DUE 5,670.00       

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!



WEST SIDE MIDDLE SCHOOL 
101 SOUTH NAPPANEE STREET* ELKHART, IN 46514 

PHONE: 574-295-4815 

eK I kkk kk Ik I ke kk ek 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
J.C. RICE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES CENTER 

2720 CALIFORNIA ROAD * ELKHART, IN 46514 

PHONE: 574-262-5500 

  

To Whom It May Concern, 12-13-22 

West Side Band would like to purchase 9 Intermediate band instruments.( 3 Trombones 

and 6 trumpets). The cost 9,149.55 to Qunilan and Fabish. This price is $8,940 below retail 

price. The funds are in the WS ECA. | am requesting 1 PO. 

Thank You 

Tim Carnall 

WS Band Director 

   



QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE EA TOTALITEM
3 STBBRVO Shires Bravo Trombone 1,209.95 3,629.85
6 STRBRVO Shires Bravo Trumpet 919.95 5,519.70

SUBTOTAL 9,149.55

TOTAL 9,149.55

Ship To:

PROPOSAL

Attn: Kathleen Enfield
West Side MS
101 S Nappanee St
Elkhart IN 46514

Sold To:

1/12/2023
EXPIRESPO

ACCT EMPL ID

DATEPROPOSAL
14110601 12/13/2022 9:46 AM

545270 LLOYD_KIRKPATRICK

Tim Carnall
LK del to West Side MS

H 574-295-4815

Page 1 of 1 545270: West Side MS ACCT: 545270 REF: 14110601









DATE:  12/13/2022

TO:      Dr. Steve Thalheimer
Board of School Trustees

FROM: Brian Buckley & Jacquie Rost
Elkhart High School Athletic Department

RE: Donation Approval

A donation in the amount of $1,000.00 has been given to the Elkhart High School
Cheerleading team from Legacy Heating and Air, Inc. These funds will be used to assist
with growth of our cheer program.

We are requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation
and that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to:

Legacy Heating and Air, Inc.
22285 Elkhart East Blvd.
Elkhart, IN 46514



DATE:  12/15/2022

TO:      Dr. Steve Thalheimer
Board of School Trustees

FROM: Brian Buckley & Jacquie Rost
Elkhart High School Athletic Department

RE: Donation Approval

A donation in the amount of $1,000.00 has been given to the Elkhart High School
Cheerleading team from Monteith’sBestone Tire & Service. These funds will be used to
assist with growth of our cheer program.

We are requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation
and that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to:

Monteith’s Bestone Tire & Service
2503 Cassopolis St.
Elkhart, IN 46514







What is the 

title of the 

grant?

What is the 

name of the 

granting agency/

entity?

Please list 

school/entity 

applying.

Individual/

contact applying 

for the grant?

What is the 

amount

applied for?

How will the grant funds be used and who 

will oversee the 

management of the grant?

Please explain how the grant funds will be 

used to support the district vision, focus, and 

goals. 

Please outline the grant budget for 

the funds requested.

What is the 

grant 

submission 

deadline?
A 50x50 Pole Barn kit is max of $50,000 

https://polebarnkits.org/50x50-pole-barn/

Construction Trades at EACC would have 

participation in assembling. 

Other funds geared towards, infrastructure 

for the pole barn such as a loft, stairs, walls. 

The Grant focus is on construction only.

12/31/2022Elkhart Community Schools has a quickly growing Agriculture 

Program. The program uses a 114 acre property called The 

Agriculture Community Center and Environmental Learn Lab 

(ACCELL). Part of the expansion at ACCELL is geared towards the 

construction of a new facility that will house the animals and 

equipment. The structure is to be constructed in part by Elkhart Area 

Career Center’s Construction Trades Program and the Agriculture 

Program. This will give the Elkhart Community Schools Agriculture 

Program and the community members in Elkhart and St. Joseph 

county proper housing and expansion for the animals, supplies, and 

equipment. Currently the animals are in a barn that is retrofitted for 

the purposes needed when the program first started in 2016. Inside 

the barn there is a hay loft, pig housing, chicken coop, duck pen, 

lumber storage, tool cabinets and a John Deere compact tractor that 

fits very strategically. The PTO attachments, trailer and other large 

equipment is housed on the old cement pad left from the Palm 

Sunday tornadoes. In order to get new machinery there needs to be 

a safe and appropriate place to store them. The new facility will be 

the most integral step into the expansion of ACELL and the 

Agriculture Program. This will provide a secure space for the 

animals and the opportunity for continued growth for the programs.

The Agriculture Program at Elkhart Community Schools is more 

than course offerings. It is part of ongoing efforts for students and 

community members to be directly involved with their food. Over the 

past 5 years it has grown from 61 students to over 500. There are 

over 50 Advisory Board members and continued collaboration with 

community and college programs across surrounding counties. 

ACCELL has housed the Soil and Water Conservation Districts 

Professional Development programs as well as Northern Indiana's 

Soil Scientists recertification education. ACCELL has a 3 acre 

pollinator plot designated with the pollinator partnership. It is created 

as a Habitat Rehabilitation, Conservation and Education Program in 

collaboration with the DNR, Pheasants Forever, Northern Indiana 

Wildlife Biologists, Elkhart County Soil and Water Conservation 

District. The mission statement for the Agriculture Program is to 

provide food and services to the community and students through 

the offerings at ACCELL. Since 2021 ACCELL has been part of the 

Church Community Services Seed to Feed Program. There are 22 

community gardens around Elkhart County that grow voluntarily and 

distribute produce as a service to community members through the 

Church Community Service food pantry. In the spring of 2022 a 

greenhouse was constructed to start the Farm to Tray initiative with 

the food service department to provide fresh produce to the 

students in Elkhart Community Schools. These are only part of the 

programs ACCELL has created and is part of. Having this new 

facility will allow the agriculture program the opportunity to offer 

community classes in food production and food safety. The program 

would be able to run certification and safety courses at no cost to 

the community and students. At the high school, the School of 

Natural Resources would be able to fill the waitlists for the course 

offerings making agriculture available to more students. Over 75 

acres of the land is on a farm lease. The new facility can provide the 

housing for equipment we can use to farm more of the land 

ourselves. We plan to use it for produce and animal feed in order to 

be completely sustainable in our cafeterias and livestock husbandry. 

In addition this facility and equipment would be used with other 

community members such as the Church Community Services, 

Seed to Feed program. 

Community 

Foundation of 

Elkhart County 

Mishler Brown 

Grant

Carrie Berghoff of 

Community 

Foundation of 

Elkhart County

Agriculture 

Department

Brenda Mueller $50,000 Used for the construction of a new 

barn at ACCELL. Brandon Eakins 

and Brenda Mueller

Page 1 of 2 12/19/22 Board Meeting



What is the 

title of the 

grant?

What is the 

name of the 

granting agency/

entity?

Please list 

school/entity 

applying.

Individual/

contact applying 

for the grant?

What is the 

amount

applied for?

How will the grant funds be used and who 

will oversee the 

management of the grant?

Please explain how the grant funds will be 

used to support the district vision, focus, and 

goals. 

Please outline the grant budget for 

the funds requested.

What is the 

grant 

submission 

deadline?
NRA Foundation 

Grant

Friends of the 

NRA

Elkhart High 

School 

AFJROTC

SMSgt Scott 

Rutledge

$12,000 The grant funds will be used to 

purchase equipment to properly 

begin our air rifle marksmanship 

program. SMSgt Rutledge and 

Major Dorman will oversee the 

management of the grant.

The marksmanship program has been slated to 

begin for 2 years now, however manning and 

funding have not been optimal to get the 

program running properly. A marksmanship 

program with air rifles will teach shooting 

safety, will promote self discipline, teamwork 

and leadership for the cadets on the team, and 

custodial responsibility for those cadets who 

will assist the instructors with proper storage 

and maintenance of these resources.

RANK

ITEM DESC.

QTY

Crosman Challenger Bundle $1,000 each 

7requested

Champion's Choice OffhandStand .177 

(Blue) $500

Champion's Choice 12-50x50mm(Angled 

Lense) Spotting Scope.5 requested

Orion C230 Bundle $1500

Champion's Choice Bipod ScopeStand 

$500

Air Venturi Nomad II 4500 PSIPortable PCP 

Compressor (outside of request money, but 

could still recieve) approx $800

Champion's Choice KneelingRoll $200

Champion's Choice CompressedAir Tank 

$120

Thank You Promotional Banner.60" x 33"

Creedmoor .177 Pellets By Vogel(500 

Count) $100

Creedmoor Mesh Open FingerISSF 

Shooting Glove $200

12/20/2022

Page 2 of 2 12/19/22 Board Meeting



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Steven Thalheimer 

From:  Ms. Maggie Lozano 

Date:  December 19, 2022 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

 

a. New Certified Staff – We recommend the following new certified staff for employment in the 

2022-23 school year: 

 

Laurie Kaiser   Osolo/Grade 6 

 

Monica Shankle  Beardsley/Special Education 

 

William Simmons  West Side/Math 

 

 

b. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Aaron Elias   Pierre Moran/Social Studies 

Began:  1/13/20   Resign:  12/22/22 

 

Russell Horst   Elkhart High/Science 

Began:  8/9/21   Resign:  12/22/22 

 

Kathryn Lane   Elkhart High/Language Arts 

Began:  8/15/11   Resign:  12/22/22 

 

 

CLASSIFIED 

 

 

a. New Hires – We recommend regular employment of the following classified employee: 

 

Suzanne Tufts    ESC/Secretary 

Began: 10/24/22   PE: 12/19/22 

 

b. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following classified employee: 

     

Loria Mayes    ESC/Executive Assistant 

Began: 2/3/81    Retire:  3/3/23 

       42 Years of Service 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

c. Leave – We recommend an extension to an unpaid leave for the following classified employee: 
 
Lisa Swartzell-Guerra   Riverview/Food Service 

Began:  11/3/22    End:  12/15/22 

 

d. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employee:  

 

Kevin Havens    West Side/Custodian 

Began: 9/28/15    Resign:  3/31/23 

 

 

 



ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
Elkhart, Indiana

December 14, 2022

TO: Dr. Steven Thalheimer
Board of School Trustees

FROM: Kevin Scott

SUBJECT: Bus Purchase Recommendation

The Business Office recommends Board approval of the 2022 purchase of buses
from Kerlin Bus Sales as reflected in the attached materials.

As noted, not only was Kerlin’s the lowest price by category and in total, they are
also helping us to reduce our fleet size by 10 of our oldest buses by purchasing them
outright.

Thank you for your ongoing support of our program.



















































To: Dr. Steve Thalheimer

Board of School Trustees

From: Jon Chevalier

Date: December 15, 2022

Subject: Recommendation for Award – Fuel Bid 2023

Fuel bids for 2023 were opened on December 15, 2022 by Tony Gianesi, Jon Chevalier and
Sarah Nelson. After reviewing a single bid it is recommended that the 2023 Fuel Bid be
awarded to Ceres Solutions as the most responsive and most responsible bidder. Ceres
Solutions has provided fuel for Elkhart Community Schools each year since 2016.

The bid summary reflects fixed pricing, including all applicable taxes and fees, available on the
date of bids.  The Business Office respectfully requests permission to award a fixed price
contract to Ceres Solutions within the next 30 days at the best possible price available on a
given day within this time frame.

VENDOR FORM
95

FIXED DIESEL FIXED REGULAR TOTAL COST PER
BID DOCUMENTS

CERES X 3.538 2.675 713,380







CASH:

     Petty Cash                                          500.00$                

BANK ACCOUNTS:

     Teachers Credit Union                                                       2,987,308.97$      
     Lake City Bank – Accounts Payable (2,210,857.00)       
     Lake City Bank – Payroll Account                                      (339,364.96)          
     Lake City Bank – Flex Account                                          77,685.06             
     Lake City Bank – Merchant Account                                  -                        
     Lake City Bank – Prepaid Lunch                                        986,461.99           
     Lake City Bank – Deposit Account 31,057,434.66      
     Lake City Bank – Book Rental -                        
     BMO Harris Bank (UMR insurance) 407,420.00           

INVESTMENTS:

     Certificate of Deposit  -                        
                                                                                                                            

ACCOUNT BALANCES/INVESTMENT DETAIL
November 2022

32,966,588.72$       



Total Expenditures as of 
November 2022

Total % of Allocation 
Expended

Account Budget
% of  total 

Budget

2,785,702.40 101.80%
Instruction - Regular 

Programs $2,736,365.57 81.15%

5,028.75 94.88% Support Services - Students $5,300.00 0.16%

151,448.43 73.88%
Support Services - 

Instruction $205,000.00 6.08%

130,450.70 186.36%
Support Services - General 

Admin $70,000.00 2.08%

1,472.00 2.94%
Operations and 

Maintenance $50,000.00 1.48%

14,057.60 100.00%
Non-Programmed 
Charges/Transfer $14,057.60 0.42%

267,731.57 91.89%
Non Public School Allocation 

Transfer $291,374.40 8.64%

3,355,891.45 99.52% $3,372,097.57 100.00%

Expenditures incurred during November 2022 consisted of technology secured by the Boys & Girls Club and COVID supplies 
by St. Thomas School per budgeted allocations. 

ESSER I Utilization Review



0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000 2,785,702

5,029 151,448 130,451
1,472 14,058 267,732

2,736,366

5,300
205,000 70,000 50,000 14,058

291,374

ESSER I - Expenditure to Budget as of 11/30/22

Total Expenditures as of November 2022 Budget



Total Expenditures as 
of November 2022

Total % of Allocation 
Expended

Account Budget

$985,142.54 85.84% Instruction - Regular Programs $1,147,607.00

$189,420.92 20.28% Instruction - Special Programs $933,959.00

$449,915.92 108.51% Instruction - Summer School Programs $414,623.00

$154,766.20 63.12% Instruction - Remediation Programs $245,190.00

$284,990.03 74.64% Support Services-Students $381,811.00

$631,539.15 56.50% Support Services-Instruction $1,117,687.89

$106,993.49 101.90% Support Services-General Admin $104,995.00

$123,515.71 90.23% Student Transportation $136,886.00

$266,621.54 74.84% Community Service Operations $356,246.00

$5,656,339.06 83.12% Facilities Acquisition and Construction $6,804,736.00

$39,416.48 112.62%
Non Programmed Charges/Transfer

$35,000.00
8,888,661.04 76.11% $11,678,740.89

ESSER II - Utilization Review



0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

985,143

189,421 449,916
154,766 284,990

631,539
106,993 123,516 266,622

5,656,339

39,416

1,147,607 933,959
414,623 245,190 381,811

1,117,688

104,995 136,886 356,246

6,804,736

35,000

ESSER II - Expenditure to Budget as of 11/30/22

Total Expenditures as of November 2022

Budget



YTD Expenditures as of 
November 2022

Total % of Allocation 
Expended

Account Budget
% of Total 

Budget

2,712,814.69 57.92% Instruction - Regular Programs $4,683,726.72 17.74%

556,125.13 141.62% Instruction - Special Programs $392,690.00 1.49%

36,426.94 100.42%

Instruction - Adult/Continuing 
Ed Programs

$36,274.00 0.14%

331,138.92 23.68%
Instruction - Summer School 

Programs $1,398,625.00 5.30%

210,195.40 13.70%
Instruction - Remediation 

Programs $1,534,501.00 5.81%

604,972.26 27.15% Support Services Students 2,228,127.00 8.44%

3,786,578.98 69.50% Support Services - Instruction 5,448,285.00 20.63%

125,377.45 30.94%
Support Services - General 

Admin 405,203.00 1.53%

579,977.93 16.31% Operations and Maintainance 3,555,243.00 13.47%

310,506.75 34.06% Student Transportation 911,601.00 3.45%

362,923.43 37.85% Community Service Operations 958,804.00 3.63%

1,158,990.33 45.89%
Facilities Acquisition and 

Construction $2,525,707.00 9.57%

0.00 0.00%
Non-Programmed Charges 

Transfer $2,324,642.00 8.80%
$10,776,028.21 40.81% $26,403,428.72 100.00%

Expenditures for November 2022 consisted of salaries/benefits, professional development, and supplies for budgeted progamming.

ESSER III - Utilization Review



0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

2,712,815

556,125
36,427 331,139 210,195

604,972

3,786,579

125,377
579,978 310,507 362,923

1,158,990

0

4,683,727

392,690 36,274

1,398,625 1,534,501

2,228,127

5,448,285

405,203

3,555,243

911,601 958,804

2,525,707
2,324,642

ESSER III - Expenditure to Budget as of 11/30/2022

YTD Expenditures as of November 2022 Budget




	Agenda - December 19, 2022
	Minutes - Public Work Session - December 13 2022
	Minutes - Regular Meeting  - December 13 2022
	Fundraisers 12_19_2022
	Extra curricular purchase
	Copy of Extra-Curricular Purchases memo for Board  (27)
	scan_bcurry_2022-12-13-12-31-35
	WSMS band board request
	WS Bravo quote

	Gift acceptance - Kem Krest - EACC
	Gift acceptance - Legacy Heating - cheer donation
	Gift acceptance - Monteith's Bestone Tire and Service- cheer donation '22
	Conf leaves - ESC
	Conf leaves - EACC
	Grants to Board 12.19.22
	Personnel report - 12-20 agenda1
	Bus Recommendation
	Bus Purchase Reco (2)
	Bus Reco Docs

	Fuel Bid Recommendation 2023.docx
	New course - Advanced Placement Precalculus
	Financial Report w Esser
	Financial Report (4)
	FR Monthly Balance Sheet
	Financials
	Summary of Receipts and Expenditures as of 11-30-2022

	ESSER I, Utilization Review, 11-30-22
	ESSER I, Expenditure to Budget, 11-30-22
	ESSER II, Utilization Review, as of 11-30-22
	ESSER II, Expenditure to Budget, 11-30-22
	ESSER III, Utilization Review, as of 11-30-22
	ESSER III, Expenditure to Budget, 11-30-22

	Insurance



